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LNJ BHILWARA GROUP

A NATIONWIDE PRESENCE

A. Rajasthan Spinning & Weaving Mills Ltd.

1. Gulabpura Synthetic, Regenerated Cellulosic Blended Grey, Dyed Yarn & Fabric
2.  Banswara Synthetic, Regenerated Cellulosic & Cotton-blended Grey Yarn

3.  Mandpam Cotton Melange Yarn, Cotton-blended Melange & Dyed Yarn

4. Rishabhdev Synthetic, Blended & Grey Yarn

Ringas Synthetic & Blended Dyed Yarn
ngalore Apparels
Mordi Process House

HEG Ltd.

Mandideep Graphite Electrodes & Thermal Power
) Steel / Sponge Iron

Waste Heat Recovery Power

dro Electric Power

dymade Garments

PAS

& Dyed Yarn

Fabric & Furnishing Fabric

of Synthetic & Worsted Fabric, Tops Fibre Dyeing

td.
ydro Electric Power

Ltd.
ngan Hydro Electric Power

do Canadian Consultancy Services Ltd.
Noida Power Engineering Services

Bhilwara Scribe Pvt. Ltd.
Bhopal IT-enabled Services

Corporate Office
Noida (NCR - Delhi)

Regional / Marketing Offices
Mumbai 25. Kolkatta 26. Bangalore
Delhi 28. Ludhiana

This is only an indicative map



LNJ Bhilwara Group Milestones

Knitted Garments : Maral Overseas Ltd.

I Recently, installed a 1000 MT p.a. Yarn Dyeing
facility to facilitate expansion of spinning,
knitting and processing capacity.

I A 10 MW Captive Thermal Power Plant to be
completed by end of FY 2007.

Textiles : Rajasthan Spinning & Weaving

Mills Limited

I One of the largest producers and exporters of
Polyester / Viscose Blended Yarn in India.

I Acquired Jaipur Polyspin Ltd., to manufacture
Synthetic dyed Blended Yarn.

I Acquired an open-end plant with 1680 rotors
from Phillipines.

I Introduced ready-to-wear Apparels,
manufactured at a newly set up unitin
Bangalore.

1 Setting up a 46 MW Captive Thermal Power
Plant in Mordi.

I Setting up a Rs. 190 crore Denim
manufacturing facility in Mordi.

I Announced plans to increase spindle
capacity by 15%.
Graphite / Steel / Power : HEG Limited

I Has the largest single site Graphite Electrodes
manufacturing plant in South & South-East
Asia and the Middle East; is the world’s
second-largest single site plant.

GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Rsin crore)
PARTICULARS 2003-04 2003-2004 2005-2006
Turnover 1815 2049 2387
Export Sales 792 893 1016
PBIDT 259 274 374
PBDT 201 208 286
PBT 81 96 156
PAT 72 79 115
Gross Fixed Assets 1953 2494 2922
Net Worth 768 969 1382

I Internationally recognised Bureau Vertitas
(BUQI) 1ISO140001-1996.

1 Quality leadership enables exports to top 50
steel producers of the world.

1 Production capacity in Mandideep scaled up
to 52,000 MT p.a. from 30,000 MT last year.

1 State-of-the-art R&D centre set up in
Mandideep.

I New 25 MW Captive Power Plant
commissioned in Mandideep.

1 Setup a 1,00,000 MT production capacity
Steel Billets project in Durg, M.P.

Suitings : BSL Limited

1 Setting up a 6 MW Captive Thermal Power
Plant; expanding spinning facility by 8,000
spindles.

Power Generation : Malana Power
Comapny Ltd. / AD Hydro Power Ltd.

I Malana Hydro Electric project commissioned
in record construction time of 30 months.

1 Work of 200 MW Allain-Duhangan Hydro
Electric Project picked up momentum in
Manali, H.P.; to be commissioned by second
quarter of 2008.

1 Bagged 75 MW prestigious hydro project in
Punjab, through competitive bidding.

1 Microsoft Dynamics Navision business suite
ERP solution implemented for power
companies connecting HO (Noida) with sites
in Malana & AD Hydro on single platform.

I Design partner RSW, Canada, and equity

partner SN Power, Norway, also connected
on the same platform.

Power Consultancy : Indo Canadian
Consultancy Services Ltd.

1 Offers Engineering Consultancy Services to
several prestigious Hydro & Thermal Power
projects across India, besides handling
ongoing Group projects.
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Ravi Jhunjhunwala
Chairman

Footprints of Success

From the Chairman’s Desk

Dear Shareholders,

India has performed excellently yet
again. The initial estimate of India’s
Real GDP growth in 2005-06 is 8.1%. For
the textile industry, there has been
another positive; dismantling of quota
restrictions on 1st January, 2005, with
the expiry of the Multi-Fibre
Agreement, has provided
opportunities for Indian players who
have the scale and the ability to
consistently produce yarn, fabric and
garments, that meet increasingly
demanding global standards.

These developments present us with
both opportunities and challenges.
Your Company has done well to
leverage this opportunity by focusing
on building fresh capacities and
consolidating the operations.

The margins have been under pressure
in the last few years and we are
expecting the trend to continue in the
future also. Our continued efforts in
upgrading and modernising of
operations in the past have borne
results, and with investments lined up
for a captive thermal power project,
we can further increase productivity
and secure attractive price points, so
as to continue increasing operational

efficiencies. It is not an easy task in a
market as competitive as textiles. But if
anyone can do it, it has to be your
Company's employees. Time and time
again they have risen to challenges.
And | am confident that the elixir of
growth will stimulate the best out of
them in the years to come.

Your Company is confident of getting
the best out of its larger, more
consolidated and technologically
modern operations, to further leverage
the goodwiill that its products enjoy in
domestic and global markets. | am
therefore looking forward to an even
better performance in 2006-07.

May | request you to bestow your
good wishes upon all those at Marall
Overseas Limited, who are responsible
for making this growth possible? And
please allow me to express my
heartfelt thanks and gratitude for your
continuing support.

India will grow. And with it, Maral
Overseas Limited Limited.

Jai Hind!

Ravi Jhunjhunwala
Group Chairman

Shekhar Agarwal

Managing Director
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Message from the
Managing Director

Dear Shareholders,

The financial year 2005-2006 has
been a period of multiple
achievements and significant
operational progress for HEG. During
the year, we became the largest
single-site graphite electrode
manufacturers in Asia, added 25 MW
of new capacity to our existing
captive power operations, and
forward-integrated our sponge iron
business by establishing a 1,00,000
tonne steel billets plant. In addition
to that, we also successfully raised
additional capital from high quality
foreign investors to fund our future
growth plans, and commissioned a
new state-of-the-art R&D centre to
ensure that we retain our
technology-led competitive edge.

The most significant development
during FY2006, of course, has been
the completion of our graphite and
power expansion projects. We
commissioned our expanded
graphite capacity of 52,000 tonnes
per annum in the middle of FY2006,
and after its integration into our
existing processes, production from
this new capacity has stabilised. | am
glad to inform you that the quality of
output from our expanded capacity

is better than before. Volumes from
our expanded graphite capacity are
increasing progressively and FY2007
should reflect near optimal
performance. Our decision to
implement this expansion initiative at
a time when graphite prices were
beginning to normalise with an
upward bias, and at the same site as
the existing graphite capacity, is
expected to result in tangible
benefits by way of better revenues
and lower cost, translating into
higher returns on investment.

During FY 2006, graphite electrode
prices increased by almost 20% and
all new contracts that we are
entering into for future During FY
2006, graphite electrode prices
increased by almost 20% and all new
contracts that we are entering into
for future

During FY 2006, graphite electrode
prices increased by almost 20% and
all new contracts that we are
entering into for future

During FY 2006, graphite electrode
prices increased by almost 20% and
all new contracts that we are
entering into for future During FY
2006, graphite electrode prices
increased by almost 20% and all new



Management Discussion
and Analysis

The Textile Industry in India is a major contributor to industrial
growth. The Indian economy is presently enjoying a high growth
mode, having recorded an over 8% GDP growth over the last 3
consecutive years. The textile industry covers a wide range of
activities and thus plays a significant role in the economy of the
country. As per recent estimates, it contributes about 20% to
industrial production and about 14.8% to the country's export
earnings, while providing 18% employment in
the manufacturing sector. In the above
context, it is clear that for the ongoing growth
of the Indian economy, the textile industry will
have to maintain its pace of growth.

The Multi-Fibre Agreement (MFA), that had
governed the extent of textile trade between
nations since 1962, expired on 1st January,
2005. This has now presented a good
opportunity to the textile industry in India.
Maral Overseas Limited (MOL) also looks upon
| these opportunities to consolidate its
operations, and to expand capacities in order
to meet global challenges. Apart from
modernisation, balancing of equipment and
upgradation of technology, the Company has
initiated further expansion of its spinning capacity, as well as
installation of a coal-based power generating plant.

It is expected that the above initiatives will improve the
operations of the Company.

Opportunities and Threats

The Indian Textile Industry is at crossroads today. The complete
phasing out of quantitative restrictions and consequent global
integration of markets after the year 2004, offers opportunities as
well as threats to textile trade and industry. It is regarded as an
opportunity due to removal of quantitative restrictions on our
exports, but this will be possible only if we are competitive, and
customer-focused. Textile manufacturers in India would need to
use their comparative advantage, in order to convert threats
into opportunities. The Company emphasises the need for cost
consciousness, consistent quality and reliable service to
customejs, to meet challenges and maintain a leadership
"-;-pesition in order to face global competition, particularly from
neighbouring countries. The Company, under the Technology
Upgradatﬂ‘l Funds Scheme (TUFs), announced by the Ministry of
Textiles, has upgraded its plant and machinery in recent years,
;o}ar-up to face these global challenges.
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Business

MOL is a leading manufacturer of cotton yarn, knitted
fabric (both grey and processed) and textile garments.
Itis one of the leading exporters of cotton yarn from
India and has a commanding position in knitted fabrics
and textile garments in domestic, as well as
international, markets. During the year under review, the
Company consolidated its operations and recorded a
turnover of Rs. 245.23 Crore, as against Rs. 248.64 Crore
in the previous year. In order to consolidate and focus its
operations, the Company disposed off its domestic
marketing division, after obtaining all necessary
approvals. The FOB value of Company's exports were to
the tune of Rs. 177.71 Crore, against Rs. 176.97 Crore in
the last fiscal. The share of exports accounts for 72.5% in
MOL's revenues, as against 71.2% in the previous year.

Currently, the Company's yarn business accounts for
47% of its revenues, while the knitted fabric and textile
‘made-ups business accounts for 13% and 40%
respectively.

Yarn Business

MOL offers to its customers, the finest quality of yarn
conforming to international standards, which
commands a premium in the global market. MOL, in its
quest for offering a broad range of products,
introduced dyed yarn during the year, which gives a
higher value-addition and is offered on a customised
basis. meeting the specifications of customers. MOL
sold 164 MT of dyed yarn, which evoked good response
from the market. MOL has installed a yarn dyeing
facility of 1000 MT, which is expected to contribute
significantly to the top and bottom line of the
Company in the future.

Recognising the demand for quality yarn, MOL is
contemplating expansion of its spinning capacity by
23184 spindles, adding to its existing 54528 spindles and
thus increasing the spindlage to 77712, in the short
term.




Knitted Fabric Business

MOL offers processed fabric to a wide range of customers
across international and domestic markets. MOL improved the
volumes of both grey knitted fabric and processed fabric during
the period under review, though the margins remained under
pressure.

MOL believes that there is good potential for this business, being
a high value-addition product.

Textile made-up Business /
Garments

MOL's garment business caters to a
reputed international customer base and
is a highly volume-driven business. MOL
manufactures garment and textile made-
ups at all its Units in Sarovar, Jammu and
Noida. MOL was able to substantially
increase its volume of garment exports
during the year, to Rs. 67.62 Lac pieces of
made-ups, against Rs. 46.21 Lac piecesin
the last year, thus recording a growth of
46%. However, due to increase in input
costs not matching with the corresponding
price realisation of the end product, the
Company could achieve a growth of only 25% in its turnover for
this segment. Thus, margins were under pressure. Further, the
costs at the Jammu unit have been increasing to unsustainable
levels, seriously impacting the bottom line of the Company,
which needed to be reviewed in depth.

MOL is undertaking an aggressive marketing strategy to improve
its margins for this business, in order to achieve full benefits of
the value-addition which is inherent in this segment of business.

Risk Management.

Market Risk

With the removal of quantitative restrictions, MOL operates in a
highly competitive global environment. The product supply
chain consists of various inputs and competes on low-cost, high-
quality, accurate delivery and flexibility in variety and volumes,
thus involving a higher content of market risk. Any adverse
movements in the prices of raw materials and other inputs, such

as fuel, can affect the margins of the Company and
affect its performance.

MOL is embarking upon various strategies to combat
and minimise these risks. Firstly, the Company is in the
process of expanding its capacities to gain from
economies of scale, and also to cater to a larger
volume of orders. Secondly, the Company is focusing on
value-addition to increase its margins. Similarly, the
Company is also focusing on controlling costs,
particularly through investments in a thermal power
plant to generate low-cost power, which will also
mitigate the risks, due to high global oil prices.

Currency Risk

MOL, due to its higher content of exports, has large
exposure in foreign currency. Further, the prices of raw
materials, such as imported cotton and furnace oil, are
exposed to import parity and are affected with any
movements in the rupee.

In order to combat these risks, MOL has in place a well-
documented and established foreign exchange risk
policy and currency risks are hedged accordingly.

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

MOL has in place a strong and effective internal audit
and control system for effective monitoring of
operations, and utilisation of resources to achieve
maximum efficiency. The Company has also in place
well-documented policies on most aspects of its
business, which are regularly discussed and monitored
by the Audit Committee of the Board. The Management
of MOL and the Audit Committee regularly interact with
internal & management auditors, and seek their
independent opinion on the policies and procedures
being followed at its various units.

Human Resources

Human resource is the most valuable asset in any
organisation. MOL also focuses on the training and
development of its people through continuous internal
and external, training and development programmes.
The Company has taken various initiatives during 2005-
06 to improve and enhance the skills of its people, plus
identifying their talent through reputed HR consultancy
firms.

9

Harmonious industrial relationships were maintained
during the year. The total strength of MOL as at the
end of the financial year 2005-06 was 3696 employees.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Ever since its inception, Maral Overseas Limited has
always cared about the community it operatesin. As
such, the Company has looked to providing
education, healthcare and development of the
environment around. MOL has helped to build several
schools and facilities for physically challenged
individuals in the proximity of its manufacturing plants.

Maral also offers monetary assistance to develop
landscaping around its units. Some achievements
completed during the year, include xxxxxxx
XXXXXXXXKX XXXXXXK XXXXXXXXXK XXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXK XHXXXXXHXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXX .

Cautionary Statement

Certain statements in this Management Discussion and
Analysis describing the Company's objectives,
projections, estimates and expectations may be
‘forward-looking statements,” within the meaning of
applicable laws and regulations. Forward-looking
statements are identified in this report by using words
like "anticipates,” "believes,’ *expects,’ ‘intends’ and
other similar expressions in such statements. Although
we believe our expectations are based on reasonable
assumptions, these forward-looking statements may
be influenced by numerous risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual outcomes and results to be
materially different from those expressed or implied.
Some of these risks and uncertainties have been
discussed in the section on "Risk Management.*. The
Company takes no responsibility for any consequence
of decisions made, based on such statements, and
holds no obligation to update these in the future.



DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Seventeenth Annual
Report of the Company and the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31st March, 2006.

Financial Results

(Rs.in crore)

Current Previous

Year Year

Net Turnover 245.23 248.64
Proﬂ t/(LOSS) before |nterest .....................................................................
and Depreciation 26.30 28.53
|_e 5 5 |nterest &Ban k Ch arges .................. 1209 ............................. 1 022
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation ~ 1421 - 1831
less: Depreciation 1646 18.25
Profit(Loss) beforeTax @25 0.06
Less: Provision for Taxation @) (1.03)
Prof ,t/(Loss) afterTax ................................ 049 ............................... 1 09
Add Ba|an Cebro ughtforw ard ..................................................................
from previous year (15.52) (16.61)
Balance carried to Balance Sheet ~ (15.08)  (15.52)

Operations

The operations of the Company, during the period under review, have
suffered a setback because of lower operating margins. The Company
has undertaken modernisation-cum-expansion programmes. The
operations in the yarn dyeing facility and process house are under
stabilisation. As such, anticipated contributions from modernisation
and expansion could not be achieved during the year.

During the year, your Company has been able to achieve a production
of 11,787 MT (11,847 MT) of cotton yarn, 164 MT (NIL) of dyed yarn,
2,849 MT (2,225 MT) of grey knitted fabric, 2,951 MT (2,088 MT) of
processed fabric and 67.62 lac (46.21 lac) pieces of textile made-
ups.

Your Directors are monitoring the operations and are hopeful that the
Company will be able to meet global challenges in the coming years.

Dividend

In the absence of adequate profit during the year under review, your
Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend on the Equity
Shares of the Company.

Industry Scenario

The world markets have opened for export of textile products due to
abolition of quantitative restrictions on import by developed countries
with effect from 1st January, 2005. However, it has led to greater
competition, primarily from countries like China, Pakistan, Sri Lanka,
Bangladesh, etc. This emphasises the need for cost consciousness,
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stricter quality control and service to customers, to maintain a
leadership position and to have an edge over competitors.

Your Company is a major player in various product segments of the
industry ranging from yarn and fabric to garment and textile made-
ups. Your Company is gearing up further to meet the stringent
requirements of its discerning customers in all its product categories.

Expansion cum Modernisation

In view of the promising scenario in the Textile Industry, your Company
has undertaken modernisation and balancing of equipment and
upgradation of technology. The Company has installed a yarn dyeing
facility of 2000 MT per annum. The fabric knitting and processing
capacities have also been expanded by 240 MT and 390 MT
respectively. The operations in all the new projects are under
stabilisation.

Expansion of the Company's spinning capacity by 23184 spindles at
a cost of Rs. 60 crore, is under implementation. A 10 MW Coal Thermal
Power Plant at a cost of Rs. 40 crore is also under implementation,
and is expected to be completed by end of this financial year.

Your Directors are hopeful that, after implementation of the above
capex plans, the Company's operations will improve significantly,
resulting in improved performance.

Preferential issue of Equity Shares

During the period under review, 12,25,163 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each, at a premium of Rs. 40/- each, aggregating Rs. 50/- per Equity
Share, were issued to Promoters, Directors and Persons acting in
concert, which included Associates and Relatives of such Promoters
and Directors of the Company. The Funds received have been used
for general corporate purpose and augmenting the long-term
resources of the Company.

Disposal of Domestic Marketing Division

During the period under review, the domestic marketing division of the
Company which was incurring losses, was sold off after obtaining all
the necessary approvals.

Voluntary Delisting of Equity shares

The Company has applied for voluntary delisting of its Equity shares
from the Calcutta Stock Exchange, whose response to the application
made by the Company, is awaited.

Directors

Mr. L. N. Jhunjhunwala and Mr. P. S. Dasgupta, Directors, retire by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
Mr. Shekhar Agarwal was re-appointed as Managing Director of the
Company for a further period of five years, with effect from 1st January,
2006, subject to the approval of the members of the Company. The
Board recommends the reappointment of Mr. Shekhar Agarwal.

Auditors

M/s Doogar & Associates and M/s Ashim & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, Auditors of the Company, retire at the conclusion of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, and are eligible for
re-appointment.



The observations of the Auditors are explained wherever necessary,
in the appropriate notes to the accounts.

Internal Control Systems

The Company has an adequate and effective internal control
mechanism in place to protect its resources. The top Management
and Audit Committee review and ensure that the Internal Controls are
in place and functioning to help ensure that applicable statues and
regulations are complied with. The recommendations of the Audit
Committee for improvement in internal controls are communicated to
the unit heads for compliance.

Particulars of Employees

Particulars of Employees, as required to be furnished pursuant to
Section 217(2A) of Companies Act, 1956, read with Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, are attached hereto and form
part of the Report as Annexure - |.

Directors' Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the
Directors state that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed.

appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied
consistently and they have made judgements and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company on 31st March, 2006, and of
the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date.
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proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

the Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The particulars relating to conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as required
under Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with
Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the report of Board of
Directors) Rules 1988, are given as per Annexure - Il to the Directors'
Report.
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ANNEXURE - | TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Statement of Particulars of Employees pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975.

A. PERSONS EMPLOYED THROUGHOUT THE FINANCIAL YEAR

SI.  Name Age Designation/Date  Remuneration Qualification  Experience Last Employment Held
No. (Years) of commencement (Rs.) (Years) Organisation Position Duration
of Employment Held (Years)
NONE

B. PERSONS EMPLOYED FOR PART OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

SI.  Name Age Designation/Date  Remuneration  Qualification Experience Last Employment Held

No. (Years) of commencement (Rs.) (Years) Organisation Position Duration
of Employment Held (Years)

1. Mr. Shekhar Agarwal 53  Managing Director 7,62,000 B. Tech (ME) 24 Rajasthan Vice Chairman 22
01/01/1991 M.Sc. (Chicago) Spg. & & Managing

Wvg. Mills Ltd. Director

Notes :

Mr. Shekhar Agarwal, Managing Director is relative of Mr. L.N. Jhunjhunwala, Chairman Emeritus and Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala, Chairman.
Mr. Shekhar Agarwal, Managing Director joined the Company on 1st January, 1991, but his remuneration commenced from 1st January, 2006.
He continues to be Vice Chairman & Managing Director of Rajasthan Spinning & Weaving Mills Ltd.

ANNEXURE - II TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

Statement of particulars pursuant to Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988.
l. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(@) Energy conservation measures taken:
1. Fixing of FRP fans in Humidity Plant.
2. Installation of inverters on H-Plants Pumps & Fans.
3. Reduction of light intensity in non-productive region.
4.  Replacement of conventional ballast with electronic ballast.
5.  Recycling of machine cooling water from dye house.
6.  Heat utilisation from effluent.
(b) Additional Investment & proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy:
1. Replacement of old motor with energy-efficient motors.
2. Installation of energy-efficient Air Compressor.
3. Conversion of Electric heating system to Steam heating.
4.  Utilisation of waste heat for hot water generation.
(c) Impact of the measures at (a) & (b) for reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact on the cost of
production of goods.
The estimated savings on account of the above measures are expected to be about 1.50 lac units per month.
INFORMATION AS PRESCRIBED IN FORM A CurrentYear Previous Year
(A) POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

Electricity

Units 1,925,187 1,703,090
Total amount (Rs.) 4,842,720 5,293,091
Rate / Unit (Rs.) 252 311

Units 45,180,136 45,334,944
Units / Litre of HSD / FO 4.08 3.99
Cost/ Unit 344 2.56
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u
T
CurrentYear Previous Year
i)  Through Steam Turbine / Generator
.............................. Umts__
"""""""""""""""" Units/Lire of fueloil o
.............................. Gas__
"""""""""""""""" Cost/Unit T
........ 2 Coal
"""""""" QuantityMT e
"""""""" Total Cost
"""""""" AverageRate /MT
"""" 3. FumaceOll/HSD
"""""""" QuantykL e 11348
"""""""" TotalCost 155304727 115916205
"""""""" AverageRate/Lire 1404 1021
4 Other/Intemalgeneration NA. NA.
B. CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION

............... |)E|ectnc|ty
COttonYam(Kg) ................................................................................................................................ 323 .................................. 334
....................... K n|ttedFabnc(Kg)o32037
....................... P rocessedFabr|c(Kg)170205
Garmem(Pc) .................................................................................................................................... 039 .................................. 048

. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
A. RESEARCHAND DEVELOPMENT

The Company has a Central Product Development Department, which undertakes product development activities for new products.
During the period under review, the Company focused on production of more value-added Yarn and Fabric.

Besides this, the Company has a Quality Assurance Department equipped with well experienced / qualified personnel and latest
sophisticated machines, to monitor and ensure quality parameters at each stage of production, and to ensure consistency in quality
& adherence to quality standards norms.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTION AND INNOVATION
1. Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

The Company has continued renovation and upgradation of its Spinning Mill. It has also continued Yarn development and Fabric
development, by adding latest technologies, equipment and machines. AYarn dyeing facility of 3 MT per day has been installed and the
Fabric dyeing facility has been expanded under the TUF Scheme of the Government of India.

2. Benefit derived as aresult of the above efforts
The Company has started commercial production of value-added yarn like core spun, slub, compact and dyed yarn. The quality of
fabric has also improved. This will help the Company in meeting existing and forthcoming challenges in the international and domestic
markets.

3. Incase of recently Imported Technology, the requisite information in brief

Olympian Technology has been installed to improve dyeing efficiency, reducing dyeing cycle time and reducing water, steam, power,
dyes & chemical cost and also to reduce extracted effluents.

lll. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The products being exported by the Company are Yarn, Fabric and Garments. The Company has been participating in international textile
exhibitions and is developing new products, especially High Value Products, to enter new markets and to sustain the existing clientele. The
Company has embarked upon a modernisation-cum-expansion programme involving a capital expenditure of Rs. 60.00 crore, to take care
of the increased export.

During the year, the Company has earned foreign exchange of Rs. 17771.42 lac at FOB price, against an outgo of Rs. 5518.17 lac
compared to the previous period's foreign exchange earning of Rs. 17697.76 lac and outgo of Rs. 2299.67 lac.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Maral Overseas Limited (MOL) is committed to high standards of Corporate Governance and has in place appropriate structures and
reporting systems. The Company believes that the governance process should ensure that the available resources are utilised in a
manner that meets the aspirations of all its stakeholders. Therefore, the Company follows Corporate Governance envisaging timely
disclosures, the attainment of high level of transparency and has a strong and professional Board which seeks to achieve shareholders
trust and maximise shareholder value. The Board ensures that the Corporate Governance processes are directed to achieve the referred
purpose and the Company follows the same in practice and spirit.

Board of Directors

The current strength of the Board of Directors is six, comprising of the Chairman Emeritus, Chairman, Managing Director and three
Independent Directors. The Chairman Emeritus, Chairman and the Managing Director are Promoter Directors. The Managing Director is
Executive and all the other Directors are Non-Executive.

The Composition of the Board of Directors and their attendance at the meetings during the year and the number of other Directorships,
Committee Memberships and Committee Chairmanships are as follows:

No. of Meetings No. of other Directorships and
Committee Membership/Chairmanship#
SiR Held | Attended | Directorships* Committee Committee
No. Name Title Category Memberships | Chairmanships
1. |Mr. L. N. Jhunjhunwala|Chairman Emeritus| Promoter - Non-Executive 6 6 7 1 -
2. | Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala |Chairman Promoter - Non-Executive 6 5 9 4 2
3. | Mr. Shekhar Agarwal |Managing Director | Promoter - Executive 6 6 7 3 1
4. | Dr. Kamal Gupta Director Independent - Non-Executive 6 5 6 7 2
5. [ Mr. P.S. Dasgupta Director Independent - Non-Executive 6 4 7 6 -
6. [Mr. D. N. Davar Director Independent - Non-Executive 6 4 12 8 5

Notes : * Excludes Directorships held in Private Limited Companies
# Includes Audit and Shareholders / Investors Grievance Committees only

The Board of Directors meets regularly throughout the year. The meetings of the Board of Directors during the financial year 2005-2006
were held on the 30th April, 2005, the 29th July, 2005, the 27th August, 2005, the 7th October, 2005, the 27th October, 2005 and the
24th January, 2006.

The previous Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on the 17th August, 2005 and was attended by Mr. Shekhar Agarwal,
Managing Director and Dr. Kamal Gupta, Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company.
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired by Dr. Kamal Gupta and consists entirely of Non-Executive Directors. Mr. L. N. Jhunjhunwala, Chairman
Emeritus, Mr. P. S. Dasgupta and Mr. D. N. Davar, Independent Directors are other members of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee of the Company met four times during the financial year 2005-2006. The meetings were held on the 30th April, 2005,
the 29th July, 2005, the 27th October, 2005 and the 23rd January, 2006. The attendance of the Committee members at these meetings
was as follows:

Name of the Member No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. L. N. Jhunjhunwala 3
Dr. Kamal Gupta 4
Mr. P.S. Dasgupta 4
Mr. D. N. Davar 4
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Mr. Rajat Prothi, Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee. Invitees to the Audit Committee include the Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Coordinator - Internal Audit and the representative of the statutory auditors, internal auditors and cost auditors.

Dr. Kamal Gupta, Chairman of the Audit Committee, possesses high degree of accounting and financial management expertise and all
members of the Committee have sound accounting and financial knowledge.

The functions of the Audit Committee include the following:

. Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial
statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the statutory auditors
and the fixation of audit fees.

. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval, with particular
reference to:

. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report in terms of clause
(2AA) of section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956.

. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.
. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.
. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.
. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.
. Disclosure of any related party transactions.
. Qualifications in the draft audit report.
. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.
. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems.

. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority
of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.

. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on.

. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion
to ascertain any area of concern.

. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the shareholders and creditors.

. Carrying out any other function as is desirable.

MOL has systems and procedures in place to ensure that the Audit Committee mandatorily reviews:

. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations.

. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management.

. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors.

. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.

. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor shall be subject to review by the Audit Committee.

. Whenever applicable, the uses / applications of funds raised through public issues, rights issues, preferential issues by major
category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing, working capital, etc), as part of the quarterly declaration of financial results.

. If applicable, on an annual basis, statement certified by the statutory auditors, detailing the use of funds raised through public issues,
rights issues, preferential issues for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus / notice.
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With regard to information on related party transactions, whenever applicable, the Audit Committee is presented with the following
information:

. A statement in summary form of transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business.
. Details of material individual transactions with related parties which are not in the normal course of business.

. Details of material individual transactions with related parties or others, which are not on an arm's length basis along with management's
justification for the same.

Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is empowered to:
. Investigate any activity within its terms of reference and to seek any information it requires from any employee.

. Obtain legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and
expertise, when considered necessary.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee considers, approves and recommends to the Board the remuneration payable to Managerial personnel
coming within the purview of applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Remuneration Committee which was constituted
during the year comprises of three Non-Executive Independent Directors — Dr. Kamal Gupta, Mr. D.N. Davar and Mr. P.S. Dasgupta.
Dr. Kamal Gupta is the Chairman of this Committee.

A Meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year for the purpose of fixing the remuneration of Mr. Shekhar Agarwal
consequent upon his reappointment as Managing Director of the Company for a period of five years, with effect from the 1st January,
2006, subject to the approval of the shareholders. This was attended to by all the members of the Committee.

Table 1 gives details of the remuneration paid to Directors during the year 2005-06.

1. Remuneration paid or payable to Directors for 2005-06 (inRs.)
Name of Director Category Sitting Salaries, Commission Total
fees allowances
and perquisites#
Mr. L. N. Jhunjhunwala Promoter — Non-Executive 1,80,000 - - 1,80,000
Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala Promoter — Non-Executive 1,00,000 - - 1,00,000
Mr. Shekhar Agarwal Promoter — Executive - 7,62,000 - 7,62,000
Dr. Kamal Gupta Independent 5,60,000 - - 5,60,000
Mr. D. N. Davar Independent 1,80,000 - - 1,80,000
Mr. P. S. Dasgupta Independent 1,80,000 - - 1,80,000

Note: # Includes retirement benefits

During 2005-06, the Company did not advance any loans to any of its Directors. None of the Directors hold stock options.

Table 2 gives details of the shares held by the Non-Executive Directors as on the 31st March, 2006.

2. Equity Shares held by Non-Executive Directors as on the 31st March, 2006

Name of Director Category Number of Shares held
Mr. L. N. Jhunjhunwala Promoter — Non-Executive Nil

Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala Promoter — Non-Executive 10

Dr. Kamal Gupta Independent 1000

Mr. D. N. Davar Independent 1000

Mr. P.S. Dasgupta Independent Nil

16




Annual Report 2005-2006 PRIVILEGED T0 BE GLOBAL
|

The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the Board meetings as well as Committee meetings. The remuneration of
the Managing Director is subject to approval of the Board and shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, and is within the ceilings laid
down under the Companies Act, 1956.

Code Of Conduct

MOL's Board has laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and designated senior management of the Company. All Board
members and designated senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with this Code of Conduct. The code of conduct is
displayed on the website of the Company www.maraloverseas.com. A declaration signed by Mr. Shekhar Agarwal, Managing Director and
Mr. P. S. Puri, Chief Financial Officer to this effect is enclosed at the end of this report.

Management
This annual report has a detailed chapter on management discussion and analysis.

During the financial year 2005-2006, there were no material financial or commercial transactions by the Company with its Promoters,
Directors, Management or relatives, etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

Shareholders Committee

The Company's Shareholders / Investors Grievance Committee comprises of Dr. Kamal Gupta, an Independent Director as the Chairman
and Mr. Shekhar Agarwal, Managing Director as the member of the Committee. Mr. Rajat Prothi, Company Secretary is the Compliance
Officer of the Company.

The Committee looks into the redressal of Shareholders and Investors complaints related to transfer and transmission of shares, non-
receipt of Annual Reports, Dividend Warrants and other share related matters. The Committee also reviews the status of Investors'
grievances and redressal mechanism.

During the year ended the 31st March, 2006, four meetings of the Committee were held on the 30th April, 2005, the 29th July, 2005, the
27th October, 2005 and the 27th January, 2006.

22 complaints were received during the financial year 2005-2006 all of which were redressed / answered to the satisfaction of the
shareholders. No Investor Grievance remained unattended / pending for more than 30 days. There were no pending complaints as on the
31st March, 2006. No request for dematerialisation of Equity Shares of the Company was pending for approval as at the 31st March, 2006.

The Company has a Share Transfer Committee to look after requests for transfer / transmission of equity shares, issue of duplicate share
certificates and consolidation / split / replacement of share certificates etc. The Board of Directors has also delegated the authority to
approve the share transfers to Mr. Shekhar Agarwal, Managing Director who attends and approves the share transfer requests on a
fortnightly basis.

The Share Transfer Committee of the Company meets as often as required. All valid requests for share transfer received during the year
have been acted upon by the Company within the stipulated time limit.

General Body Meetings
The last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) were held as per details below:

Date of AGM Relevant Financial Year Venue/Location where held Time of Meeting

Maral Sarovar, V. & P.O. Khalbujurg,
26th September, 2003 2002-2003 Tehsil Kasrawad, Distt. Khargone 12.30 P.M.
Madhya Pradesh - 451 660

Maral Sarovar, V. & P.O. Khalbujurg,
28th September, 2004 2003-2004 Tehsil Kasrawad, Distt. Khargone 12.30 P.M.
Madhya Pradesh - 451 660

Maral Sarovar, V. & P.O. Khalbujurg,
17th August, 2005 2004-2005 Tehsil Kasrawad, Distt. Khargone 2.30P.M.
Madhya Pradesh - 451 660

One Special Resolution was passed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on the 26th September, 2003. No Special
resolutions were passed at the Annual General Meetings of the Company held on the 28th September, 2004 and the 17th August, 2005,
respectively.

The Company passed one resolution by postal ballot on the 4th July, 2005. The Ordinary Resolution passed by postal ballot pertained to
disposal of the domestic marketing division for the reasons detailed in the Resolution.
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Mr. V.P. Kapoor, Practising Company Secretary was Scrutinizer for conducting the Postal Ballot as per the procedure prescribed under
the Companies Act, 1956. The details of the voting pattern of the Postal Ballot as per the report of the Scrutinizer are as follows:

Result of the Postal Ballot

Particulars Number of Votes %*
Total Forms 551

In Favour 1,08,43,522 52.81
Against 5,654 0.03
Invalid Ballots (41 Forms) 7,500 0.04
Total Receipts (551 Forms) 1,08,56,676 52.88

*At the time of Postal Ballot, the Company had 2,05,32,837 number of Equity Shares Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up.

9. Compliances

MOL has complied with all the requirements of regulatory authorities. No penalties/strictures were imposed on the Company by the Stock
Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital market during the last three years.

The Company is fully compliant with the applicable mandatory requirements of the revised Clause 49.

As regards the non-mandatory requirements, the Board of MOL has constituted a Remuneration Committee. Details of the Remuneration
Committee have been provided under the Section 'Remuneration Committee.' Also, the Company's financial statements are free from any
qualifications by the Auditors.

10. Means of Communication

The Company publishes its quarterly, half yearly and yearly results in at least one prominent national and regional newspaper. The same
are also displayed on Company's website at www.maraloverseas.com.

The Annual Reports of the Company are also displayed on website, http://sebiedifar.nic.in. This website is also accessible through a
hyperlink 'EDIFAR' from SEBI's official website, http://www.sebi.gov.in.

CERTIFICATE FROM AUDITORS REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER LISTING AGREEMENT

To the Members of
Maral Overseas Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Maral Overseas Limited, for the year ended on 31st March, 2006,
as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to procedures
and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither
an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records maintained by the
Shareholders / Investors Grievance Committee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Doogar & Associates For Ashim & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Mukesh Goyal Ashim Agarwal
Partner Partner
Membership No. 81810 Membership No. 84968
Noida (U.P.)

25th April, 2006
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION
1. Annual General Meeting
Day, Date and Time . Thursday, the 28th September, 2006 at 12.30 P.M.
Venue . Maral Sarovar, V. & P. O. Khalbujurg, Tehsil Kasrawad,
Distt. Khargone - 451 660, Madhya Pradesh
2. Financial Calendar
Financial year . April - March
Quarterly Financial reporting . Within one month from the end of each quarter except fourth
quarter when annual results are published within two months
3. Dates of Book Closure : 21st Sept., 2006 (Thursday) to 28th Sept., 2006 (Thursday) (Both days inclusive)
4. Dividend Payment Date o NA
5. Listing of Shares on Stock Exchange
1) Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001.
2) National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051.
3) Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd., 7, Lyons Range, Kolkata - 700 001.
Listing fee as prescribed has been paid to the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)
upto 31st March, 2007. The Company has made application to Calcutta Stock Exchange for delisting and its approval is awaited.
During the financial year 2005-2006, the Company received listing approvals from NSE and BSE for listing of 12,25,163 Equity Shares
issued to Promoters, Directors and Persons acting in concert, which included Associates and Relatives of such Promoters and Directors
of the Company.
6. Stock Code
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited . 521018
National Stock Exchange of India Limited : MARALOVER
7. Stock Market Data: Monthly High Low closing values (in Rs.) at BSE
60.00
o)
2 40.00
o
o
£ 2000 |
0.00
Apr-05 [May-05| Jun-05 | Jul-05 |Aug-05 | Sep-05 [ Oct-05 | Nov-05 | Dec-05 | Jan-06 | Feb-06 | Mar-06
—— High | 36.40 | 46.25 | 48.00 | 53.70 | 54.40 | 59.75 | 50.55 | 43.05 | 44.20 | 47.00 | 38.80 | 34.75
—o—Low | 33.25 | 33.60 | 41.75 | 41.95 | 47.35 | 46.30 | 38.35 | 39.95 | 39.60 | 39.10 | 33.90 | 27.25
Source: Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.
8. Performancein comparison with BSE Sensex (Both series indexed to 100 as on April, 2005)

250

200 A

150 +

100 +

50
Apr-05 | May-05 | Jun-05 Jul-05 Aug-05 | Sep-05 | Oct-05 | Nov-05 | Dec-05 | Jan-06 | Feb-06 | Mar-06
—l— MOL (High) 100.00 | 122.29 | 128.87 | 143.81 144.07 | 158.51 139.18 | 115.21 118.56 | 125.26 | 105.67 94.07
—&— Sensex (High) [ 100.00 | 101.85 [ 108.70 [ 11593 | 119.13 | 131.17 | 132.67 [ 135.86 [ 142.01 149.56 | 156.75 | 170.80

Source: Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Registrar and Transfer Agent

M/s MCS Limited is the Share Transfer Agent of the Company. The Shareholders may contact M/s MCS Ltd. for matters related to Share
Transfers etc. at the following address:

MCS Limited, Sri Venkatesh Bhavan, W-40, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-11, New Delhi- 110 020
Phone No (s) : 011-41406149, Fax No : 011-41709881, E- Mail : mcsdel@vsnl.com

Share Transfer System

The matters related to Share Transfer and transmission etc. are attended by the delegated authorities on fortnightly basis. Share transfers
are registered and returned within 30 days from the date of receipt, if the documents are in order in all respects. The total number of shares
transferred during the year 2005-06 were 62,037.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2006

No of Equity No. of Share % of Share No. of Shares % of Share
shares held holders holders holding
1-500 19,126 89.87 28,17,610 12.95
501-1000 1,094 5.14 9,33,792 4.29
1001-10000 892 4.19 25,84,659 11.88
10001 and above 109 0.51 1,53,35,332 70.48
Shares in Transit 62 0.29 86,607 0.40
Total 21,283 100.00 2,17,58,000 100.00

Dematerialisation of Shares and liquidity

1,56,20,921 shares were dematerialised till 31-03-2006, which is 71.79 % of the total paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company. Trading
in Shares of the Company is permitted in dematerialised form only.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity
The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments.

Plant Locations

1) Maral Sarovar, V. & P. O. Khalbujurg, Tehsil Kasrawad, Distt. Khargone - 451660, Madhya Pradesh.
2) SIDCO Industrial Complex, Bari Brahmana - 181 133, Jammu.

3) A-11, Hosiery Complex, Phase-Il (Extension), Noida - 201 305 (U.P).

Address for Correspondence

Investor correspondence should be addressed to:

1.  Share Transfer Agent
MCS Limited, Sri Venkatesh Bhavan, W-40, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I1, New Delhi - 110 020
Phone No (s) : 011-41406149, Fax No : 011-41709881, E -Mail : mcsdel@vsnl.com

2. Company Secretary
Maral Overseas Limited, Bhilwara Towers, A-12, Sector 1, Noida- 201301 (U.P.)
Phone No: 0120 -2541810, Fax No. : 0120-2531648, E-mail: skg@Injb.com
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AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of
Maral Overseas Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Maral Overseas
Limited as at 31st March, 2006 and also the Profit and Loss Account
and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on
that date annexed thereto.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in India. These Standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2003, issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 227 (4A) of the
Companies Act, 1956 and on the basis of such checks as we
considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure 'A' a statement on
the matters specified in paragraph 4 and 5 of the said order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report
that:
a) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

b)  Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law, have
been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

d) Inouropinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and
Cash Flow Statement, dealt with by this report, comply with the
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Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section

211 of the Companies Act, 1956.
e) On the basis of written representations received from the
directors, as on 31st March, 2006 and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2006, from being appointed as a
director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274
of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company, as technically advised, had hitherto been
considering certain plant & machinery as continuous process
and charging depreciation accordingly. This being a technical
matter, we cannot form an independent opinion on such
classification of assets and are therefore unable to comment
thereon. From the financial year 2000-2001, the Company has
revised, downwards, the estimated useful life of said plant &
machinery and has accordingly charged higher depreciation
(Refer Note no.4 to Schedule 16-Notes on Accounts).

Subject to above, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts
read with the accounting policies and notes thereon, give the
information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India :

i) Inthe case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March, 2006;

i) Inthe case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for
the year ended on that date; and

i) Inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows

for the year ended on that date.

For Doogar & Associates For Ashim & Associates

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Mukesh Goyal Ashim Agarwal
Partner Partner
Membership No. 81810 Membership N0.84968

Noida (U.P)
25th April, 2006
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in the Auditors’ Report of even date to the members
of Maral Overseas Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2006)

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a phased programme of physical
verification of its fixed assets which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. Management has physically verified
certain fixed assets during the year. As informed to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Fixed assets disposed off during the year were not
substantial and therefore do not affect the going concern
assumption.

2. (a) Theinventory, except material lying with third parties, has
been physically verified by the management during the
year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is
reasonable.

(b) The procedures for physical verification of inventory
followed by the management are, in our opinion, reasonable
and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and
nature of its business.

(c) Inouropinion, the Company is maintaining proper records
of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of inventory as compared to book records were
not material and have been properly dealt with in the books
of accounts.

3. (a) The Company has not granted any loans to companies,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained
under Section 301 of the Act. Accordingly clauses 4 (jii) (b)
to (d) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 are
not applicable

(b) The Company has taken unsecured loans from five body
corporates covered in the register maintained under Section
301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The maximum amount
involved during the year in this respect was Rs. 638.60 lac
and the year end balance of loan taken from such parties
was Rs. 500.00 lac.

(c) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and
conditions on which such loans have been taken are not
prima facie prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

(d) The Company is regular in the payment of interest and
principle amount, wherever demanded during the year.

4.  Inouropinion, and according to the information and explanations
given to us during the course of the audit, there are adequate
internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the
Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase
of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods & services.
We did not observe any major weaknesses in internal control
during the course of our audit.

5. (a) Based upon the audit procedures applied by us and
according to the information and explanations given to us,
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

we are of the opinion that the particulars of contracts or
arrangements referred to in Section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 have been entered in the register required to be
maintained under that section.

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the transactions made in
pursuance of such contracts or arrangements and
aggregating during the year to Rupees five lac or more in
respect of each party have been made at prices which are
reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices
at the relevant time, where such market prices are available.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size & nature of its business.

We have broadly reviewed the records, including the books of
account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government for the maintenance of
cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209
of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of Company's products
and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained.

(@) According to the records of the Company, undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education
and Protection Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income
tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty,
Excise Duty, Cess and other statutory dues have been
regularly deposited during the year with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations
given to us and as per the books and records examined by
us, there are no arrears of undisputed statutory dues
outstanding as on the date of balance sheet for a period
exceeding six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us
and the records of the Company examined by us, the
particulars of statutory dues of the specified status as at
the end of the year, which have not been deposited on
account of a dispute are referred to in Annexure 'B'.

The accumulated losses of the Company at the end of the financial
year are less than fifty percent of its net worth. The Company
has not incurred any cash loss in the current and immediately
preceding financial year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as
per the books and records examined by us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or
bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis
of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other
securities.

Provisions of the order applicable to chit funds, nidhi, mutual
benefit fund / societies are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities,
debentures and other investments.



15.

16.

17.

18.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as
per the books and records examined by us, the Company has
not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or
financial institutions.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the term loans raised during the year by the Company
have been applied for the purpose for which the said loans were
obtained, where such end use has been stipulated by the lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as
per the books and records examined by us, as on the date of
balance sheet, the funds raised by the Company on short term
basis have not been applied for long term investments.

During the year the Company has made preferential allotment of
equity shares to parties and companies covered in the Register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. These
shares have been issued at a price determined in accordance
with SEBI (Disclosure and Investor Protection) Guidelines, 2000
and which is not prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

ANNEXURE 'B' TO AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in Paragraph 9 (b) of Annexure ‘A’ a statement on the matters specified in the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2003
of Maral Overseas Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2006
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19. The Company has not issued any debentures.

20. The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue,
during the year.

21. Based on our examination of the books and records of the
Company and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

For Doogar & Associates For Ashim & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Mukesh Goyal Ashim Agarwal
Partner Partner
Membership N0.81810 Membership N0.84968
Noida (U.P)

25th April, 2006

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount Forum where the
Rs.inlac disputeis pending
Income Tax Act Disputed regular Income Tax demands 8.35 Income Tax Tribunal
Income Tax Act Disputed regular Income Tax demands 65.80 CIT (Appeals)
Central Sales Tax Act Non submission of relevant statutory forms 0.64 Assistant Commissioner
of Sales Tax
Non submission of relevant statutory forms 31.00 Deputy Commissioner
of Sales Tax (Appeals)
Central Excise Act Removal of samples 9.61 CESTAT
Duty on returned fabric 0.94 CESTAT
Madhya Pradesh Cess on captive power consumption 195.15 High Court
Upkar Adhiniyam
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2006
As at 31.03.2006 As at 31.03.2005
SCHEDULE Rs/lac Rs/lac

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Unsecured

20,839.63
""""" Deferred Tax Liability 77 aagze0 145129
TOTAL 30,639.73 24,633.69
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
""""" Fixed Assets s
.......... L
.......... LessDepremaﬂon&lmpawment16145191490220
Net Block 17,593.92 13,718.02
""""" Capital Workin Progress ~~~ e1746 89675
""""" Investments & 7 uae 1778
" CurrentAssets, Loans & Advances 7
""""" Inventories 7790287 66464
""""" SundryDebtors 7 agsrze 240482
.......... L
.......... Loans&Advances274084233806
13,978.56 11,690.25
Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions 8
.......... L|ab|I|t|esl70536156668
.......... Lt
1,914.86 1,761.84

12,063.70 9,928.41
.......... ( totheextentnotwrlttenofforadjusted)52747275
TOTAL 30,639.73 24,633.69
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 16
As per our report of even date
For Doogar & Associates For Ashim & Associates Ravi Jhunjhunwala
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman
Mukesh Goyal Ashim Agarwal Shekhar Agarwal
Partner Partner Managing Director
Membership N0.81810 Membership No. 84968
P.S. Puri
Chief Financial Officer
Noida (U.P.) Rajat Prothi
25th April, 2006 Company Secretary
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PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2006
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2006 31.03.2005
SCHEDULE Rs/lac Rs/lac
Income
L o 2476557 ................................................. 2515830 ...............................
.......... - essEXC|seDuty2426929418
.......... R etTurnover24522882486412
L ! po PR
.......... | ncrease/(Decrease)mStocks1293574115481
26,029.28 26,512.71
Expenditure
.......... g ater|a|51312903831377015
Operatlng&OtherExpenses ....................................................... [ 1049493 ................................................ 988949
.......... - mancuaIExpenses15120902102161
24,607.78 24,681.25
Profit / (Loss) Before Depreciation & Amortisation 1,421.50 1,831.46
.......... 5 eprematlon&Amortlsatlon164624182544
Profit / (Loss) before Taxation (224.74) 6.02
Profltfromcontmumoperatlonsbefore ................................................ (6695)10487 ...............................

tax (see note 10 of Schedule 16)

— Fringe Benefits Tax (46.19) -
Profit from continuing operations after tax - (a) 155.61 169.48
(Loss) from discontinuing operation before (157.79) (98.85)

tax (see note 10 of Schedule 16)

— Deferred 52.34 38.33
........................... —FrlngeBenefltsTax(072)—

(Loss) from discontinuing operation after tax - (b) (106.17) (60.52)
... Profit / (Loss) After Taxation (8 + D) e A e 108.96
Balance brought forward from previous year (1,552.05) (1,661.01)
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet (1,502.61) (1,552.05)

Earnings Per Share (Equity shares, par value Rs.10 each)

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

As per our report of even date
For Doogar & Associates

For Ashim & Associates Ravi Jhunjhunwala

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman

Mukesh Goyal Ashim Agarwal Shekhar Agarwal

Partner Partner Managing Director
Membership N0.81810 Membership No. 84968

P.S.Puri

Chief Financial Officer

Noida (U.P) Rajat Prothi

25th April, 2006 Company Secretary
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As at 31.03.2006 As at 31.03.2005
1. Share Capital Rs/lac Rs/lac
Authorised
3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,000.00 3,000.00
25,00,000 Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs.100/- each 2,500.00 2,500.00
5,500.00 5,500.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up
21,758,000 (Previous year 2,05,32,837)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 2,175.80 2,053.28
2,175.80 2,053.28

Note: During the year 12,25,163 Equity Shares of Rs. 122.52 lac were issued to the promoters in accordance with SEBI (Disclosure and
Investor Protection) Guidelines, 2000.

As at As at
31.3.2005 Additions Deductions 31.3.2006
2. Reserves and Surplus Rs/lac Rs/lac Rs/lac Rs/lac
Capital Reserve 123.48 - - 123.48
....... CapltalRedemptlonReserveAccount200000__200000
"""" Share Premium Account 210000 4906 - 250006
"""" GeneralReserve 3217 - - 328817
....... pront&LossAccount(155205)4944_(150251)
5,957.60 539.50 - 6,497.10
As at 31.3.2006 As at 31.3.2005
Rs/lac Rs/lac

3. Secured Loans

From Financial Institutions & Banks
....... Rupee_rerml_oans1040224795421
....... Fore|gncurrencyTermLoans241018189474
"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 1281242 984895
....... FromBanks
....... ForWork|ngCap|ta|752721498187
20,339.63 14,830.82
Notes

1. Termloans of Rs.11,423.05 lac are secured by a first charge on all the present and future immovable properties (except those situated in
the State of Jammu & Kashmir) of the Company and hypothecation of movable assets (except book debts) ranking pari-passu, subject to
prior charges in favour of the Company's bankers on stocks of raw material, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable stocks and
book debts for availing working capital facilities.

2. Termloans of Rs. 1,389.37 lac are secured by a first charge on all the movable \ immovable properties (save & except book debts) of the
Company's Jammu unit, both present and future, subject to prior charges created in favour of the Company's bankers to secure borrowings
for working capital for the Jammu unit.
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3. Term Loans repayable in next 12 months Rs. 2,671.91 lac (Previous Year - Rs. 1,089.53 lac).

4. Working capital facilities from banks are secured by way of hypothecation of stock in trade, stores (excluding machinery spares) and book debts.
In respect of facilities, other than those related to the Company's Jammu unit, these are further secured by second pari-passu charge on
all the immovable properties of the Company (other than the properties in respect of the Company's Jammu unit).

In respect of working capital facilities from banks for the Company's Jammu unit these are further secured by second charge on the
properties of the Company's Jammu unit.
As at 31.3.2006 As at 31.3.2005

4. Unsecured Loans Rs/lac Rs/lac
From Corporate 500.00 340.70

500.00 340.70

5. Fixed Assets (Rs/ lac)

Gross Block Depreciation, Impairment & Amortisation Net Block
Particulars As at Additions  Sale/ As at As at  Forthe Sale/ Impairment As at As at As at
1.4.2005 during Adj.  31.3.2006 1.4.2005 year  Adj. 31.03.2006 31.03.2006 31.03.2005
the year
A Fixed Assets
Land - Lease Hold 41.69 30.66 - 72.35 373 0.75 - - 4.48 67.87 37.96
- Free Hold 32.48 - - 32.48 - - - - - 3248 32.48
Building 4,44153  661.73 - 510326 1,064.10 127.18 - - 1,191.28 3,911.98 3,377.43
Plant & Machinery 22,533.08 4,774.11 132.66 27,174.53 12,845.90 1,355.57 126.62 - 14,074.85 13,099.68 9,687.18
Furniture & Office Equip 568.64 35.63 154.72 449.55 399.21 28.76 152.71 - 275.26 17429  169.43
Vehicles 257.47 3414 26.84 264.77 131.33  36.93 20.76 - 147.50 11727  126.14
Livestock 2.34 - - 2.34 - - - - - 2.34 2.34
B Intangibles
Software 642.99 - 316 639.83 35793  97.05 3.16 - 451.82 188.01 285.06
Trade Marks 100.00 - 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - - - -
Total (A + B) 28,620.22 5,536.27 417.38 33,739.11 14,902.20 1,646.24 403.25 - 16,145.19 17,593.92 13,718.02
C Capital Work in Progress
Building 113.41 93.94
Plant & Machinery 20.19 199.60
Capital Advances
(Unsecured, Considered good) 597.51 513.26
Pre-operative Expenses
pending allocation 186.35 89.95
Total (C) 917.46  896.75
Grand Total 28,620.22 5,536.27 417.38  33,739.11 14,902.20 1,646.24 403.25 - 16,145.19 18,511.38 14,614.77
Previous Year 28,104.07  610.37 9422  28,620.22 12,635.48 1,825.44 60.01 501.29 14,902.20 14,614.77
Notes
(1) Buildings include Rs. 0.02 lac paid for acquiring shares in housing society.
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As at 31.3.2006 As at 31.3.2005
Rs/lac Rs/lac
6. Investments
Quoted
....... N LongTerm
""""""""""" 75000 EquitySharesofRs. 10-eachfullypaidof
Bhilwara Spinners Limited 15.00 15.00
....... Bothers
7700 EquitySharesofRs.10-eachfullypaidof
BPL Engineering Limited 5.78 5.78
""""""""""""" 560 EquitySharesofRs.100-eachfullypaidof
State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur 3.02 3.02
23.80 23.80
....... Lessprov|5|onf0rd|m|nut|on|nva|ueof|nvestmems1189604
11.91 17.76
Notes:
1. Marketvalue Rs. 32.21 lac (Previous Year - Rs. 22.88 lac).
2. None of the Investments are trade investments.
7. Current Assets, Loans & Advances
....... |NVENT0R|ES
"""" (Atlower o costor net realisable value)
""""""" RawMateras  agse2 3213
""""""" Packing Materials 4 1278
Storesandspares .......................................................................................... 30945 ...................................................... 20224 ...............................
.............. 15 yes&chem,ca|586146244
.............. E mbe||,shment52041310896
""""""" Finshedgoods ~ 3s29 21803
 stockinprocess 560 01500
Waste .................................................................................................................. 1170 ........................................................... 8 82 ...............................
9,202.87 6,644.64
"""" SUNDRYDEBTORS
(Unsecured, Considered good)
""""""" Dueoversxmonths ~ 1st.49 s
© otes 18803 232334
1,737.79 2,404.62
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As at 31.3.2006 As at 31.3.2005
Rs/lac Rs/lac
"""" Considereddoubtiul
" Dueoversxmonths 93 sso1
'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' 17972 2835
"""" Less: Provision for doubtful debts s ss91
1,737.79 2,404.62
CASH & BANK BALANCES
"""""""" CashCheques&Stampsinhand 20148 1082
© BalanceswithScheduledBanksin:
"""""""" CumentAccount  3s 17427
" DepostAccount# 2760 am
MargmMoneyAccoum# ................................................................................ 527027 ...............................
D|V|dendACCOUm ........................................................................................... 2 102 ........................................................ 2783 ...............................
................ SavmgSBankAccoum
(Employees' Security Deposit) 5.11 5.57
"~ PostOffice Saving Account o2 oot
297.06 302.93
#  Includes pledged with :
Government Departments Rs. 3.33 lac (Previous Year Rs. 2.19 lac)
Bank as Margin Rs. 8.82 lac (Previous Year Rs. 1.20 lac)
"""" LOANSANDADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)
................ Advancesrecoverame,ncashor
................ |nkmdOrforva|uet0berece|ved2,48236220694
Exc|seandotherdepos|ts25848 ...................................................... 13112 ...............................
...................................................................................................................................................................... 274034233306
13,978.56 11,690.25
8. Current Liabilities & Provisions
"""" CURRENTLIABILITIES
"""""""" Trade Credis o7 69738
"""""""" Advance from customers 148 11490
"""""""" OtherLiabilties 82 73906
"~ UnclaimedDividend* 2102 2788
" nterestaccrued butnotdve a4 s
1,705.36 1,566.68

* Investor Education & Protection Fund shall be credited by these amounts.
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As at 31.3.2006 As at 31.3.2005
Rs/lac Rs/lac
PROVISIONS
....... ;:orGratu.ty&otherempmyeebenef.ts1840213422
"""" ForTaxaton . es  9sm
"""" ForFringe BeneftTax 1447
"""" ForWeathTax 14 142
......................................................................................................................................................................... 2 095019516
1,914.86 1,761.84
9. Miscellaneous Expenditure
....... (Totheextentnotwmtenofforadjusted)
....... DeferredRevenueEXpenses
"""" (Premium paid on resetting of interest rate onterm loans) ~~~~ s274 7275
52.74 72.75
Year Ended Year Ended
31.3.2006 31.3.2005
Rs/lac Rs/lac
10. Turnover
"""" ExpotSales 1787183 1837542
....... DeemedExportSa|es30735]_7795
....... Domest.csa|es476002450106
"""" Domestic Waste Sales 138099 136105
"""" jobCharges " sqo3  124&
....... Expomncent.ves3732561940
24,765.57 25,158.30
11. Other Income
"""" nsurance and Other Claims 1703 14076
....... Exchangemuctuanon10535086
....... M,sceuaneousmcome2704634029
"""" Dividend on Investment . os% o056
"""" Profiton sale of fixed assets o4 1131
570.66 493.78
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Year Ended Year Ended
31.3.2006 31.3.2005
Rs/lac Rs/lac
12. Increase/ (Decrease) in Stocks

"""" StockinTrade (Atclose)
....... |:|n|shedGoods314529212303
....... srock.nprocessgzseogmoo
....... Waste1170882
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 398250 304685
"""" StockinTrade (Atopening)
....... |:|n|shedc;oods212303122492
....... Stock|nproce559150065542
"""" wase . ge T un
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 304685 189204
935.74 1,154.81

13. Purchases & Materials Consumed
"""" Purchases . aamp 27330
"""" RawMaterial Consumed
StOCkatopenmg .......................................................................................... 321137437247 ...............................
.............. |5 urchase3922352753266
""""""" less: Cotonsod 13 1e066
""""""" Less: Stockatclose ~ agse2 321137
...................................................................................................................................................................... 731752902410
....... pack|ng|v|atena|s4515935096
....... Dyes&chem.ca|s10073163118
"""" Embelishments . 1oi048 81455
"""" sores " iee13 21306
12,903.83 13,770.15
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Year Ended Year Ended
31.3.2006 31.3.2005
Rs/lac Rs/lac

14. Operating & Other Expenses
....... SalanesWages&Beneﬂts
Sa| a”es Wage S Bonus& G ratuny . etc ................................................... 345037 ................................................... 3 101 54 ...............................
 ConbutiontoProvident Fund, EStetc 28997 28299
""""""" Employee Welfare & Other Expenses 11628 13823
...................................................................................................................................................................... 3 35557352276
....... JObCharge8147029100666
....... power&pue|17o445138025
"""" Repairs&Maintenance
""""""" Machinery (including sparesy 49948 55292
.............. é; u||d|ngz4og4226
others ................................................................................................................. 3323 ........................................................ 7831 ...............................
......................................................................................................................................................................... 6113567349
"""" nsurance Charges 103 169.44
"""" Rt " 1909 13284
....... Rates&Taxes31423698
....... Traveu.ng&(;onveyance2156222911
....... Manage”alRemuneratlon(mdUdmgsmmgfee)1962458
"""" Miscellaneous Expenses 1844 56531
....... Exchangepmctuanon_33538
....... Fre.ght&Forwardmg100352103710
....... Comm|ss|0n/cla|ms4143543762
"""" OtherSellng Expenses . 105 14902
"""" Costof ExportEntlements . " gq
"""" Provisionfor doubtful debts 02 669
....... Lossonsaleomxedassets016226
....... Exc.seDuty3466956
"""" WealthTax 18  1m
"""" Amortisation of Deferred Revenue Expenses 3001 12900
10,494.93 9,889.49
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Year Ended Year Ended
31.3.2006 31.3.2005
Rs/lac Rs/lac
15. Financial Expenses
Interest
OnTerm Loans 626.91 592.43
On Working Capital 407.60 222.41
Others 22.49 48.37
1,057.00 863.21
Less: InterestIncome (T.D.S.Rs.0.58 lac
Previous Year Rs. 0.90 lac) 16.50 3.01
1,040.50 860.20
Bank charges & other financial expenses 168.52 161.41
1,209.02 1,021.61
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1)

2)

3

4)

5)

6)

7

Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts
Accounting Policies
Revenue Recognition

i) The accounts of the Company are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards.

ii) Income is accounted for on accrual basis in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 9 - "Revenue Recognition."
i) Sale is recognised on dispatch to customer.

iv) Insurance and other claims are recognised in accounts on lodgment to the extent these are measurable with reasonable certainty of
acceptance. Excess / shortfall is adjusted in the year of receipt.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost, computed on a weighted average basis, and estimated net realisable value, after providing for cost
of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, wherever considered necessary. Finished goods and work-in-progress include costs of
conversion and other costs in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Investments

Long term investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long-term investments is made only if such a decline is
other than temporary in the opinion of the management. The current investments are stated at lower of cost or quoted / fair value computed
categorywise.

Fixed & Intangible Assets

i) Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less provision for impairment losses, if any, depreciation, amortisation and after adjustments
on account of foreign exchange fluctuation in respect of changes in rupee liability of foreign currency loans used for acquisition of fixed
assets.

i) Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation incurred, in respect of acquisition / construction of a qualifying asset, till the asset is
substantially ready for use, is capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

iy Pre-operative, trial run and incidental expenses relating to the projects are carried forward to be capitalised and apportioned to various
assets on commissioning of the project.

iv) Intangible assets are recognised on the basis of recognition criteria as set out in Accounting Standard (AS) 26 - "Intangible Assets."
Depreciation & Amortisation
Depreciation & Amortisation for the year has been accounted on the following basis:

i) Plant & machinery, building & other assets, on straight line method at the rates specified in Schedule XIV to The Companies Act, 1956
(Also refer note no. 4 of this Schedule-Notes on Accounts).

i) Vehicles, on written down value method at the rates specified in Schedule XIV to The Companies Act, 1956.
i) Leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease.
iv) Free hold land and live stock are not depreciated.

v) Assets costing upto Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

vi) Software costs are amortised at the rate applicable for computers specified in Schedule X1V to The Companies Act, 1956, which is a
fair representation of the period of time over which the asset is expected to be used.

vii) In the case of assets where an impairment loss is recognised, the revised carrying amount is depreciated over the remaining
estimated useful life.

Impairment of Assets

Specified assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount being
the higher of the asset's net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
relating to the asset. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (i.e. cash generating units).

Previously recognised impairment losses, relating to assets other than goodwill, are reversed where the recoverable amount increases
because of a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment was recognised. A
reversal of an asset's impairment loss is limited to its carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation),
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange
differences arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognised in the profit and loss account except exchange
differences related to acquisition of fixed assets which are adjusted in the carrying amount of the related fixed assets.
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which are outstanding as at the year end are translated at exchange
rates prevailing on the last working day of the accounting year. The resultant exchange differences (except those related to acquisition of
fixed assets) are recognised in the profit & loss account.
Forward contracts are entered into to hedge the foreign currency risk of the underlying outstanding at the balance sheet date as well as
future transactions in respect of which either firm commitments have been made or which are highly probable forecast transactions. The
premium or discount on all such contracts arising at the inception of each contract is amortised as expense or income over the life of the
contract. The exchange differences on such forward contracts is accounted for being the difference between (i) the foreign currency
amount of the contract translated at the exchange rate on the reporting date, or the settlement date where the transaction is settled during
the reporting period, and (ii) the same foreign currency amount translated at the latter of the date of inception of the forward exchange
contract and the last reporting date. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such a forward exchange contract is recognised
as income or expense for the period.

8) Miscellaneous Expenditure
Premium paid on resetting of interest rate on term loans is amortised over balance period of the respective loans.

9) Retirement Benefits

Contribution to provident and superannuation funds is accounted on accrual basis. Liability for gratuity and leave encashment is provided
as determined on actuarial valuation.

10) Tax OnIncome
i) Current Corporate Tax is provided on the results for the year after considering applicable tax rates and laws.

i)y Deferred Tax is provided on timing differences between tax and accounting treatments that originate in one period and are expected
to be reversed or settled in subsequent periods. Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted / substantively
enacted tax rates and laws for continuing operations.

Deferred Tax assets arising on account of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses under tax laws, that exceed the
deferred tax liability, are recognised only where there is virtual certainty of realisation.

Deferred Tax assets on account of other timing differences are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty of
realisation.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date to reassess realisation.
11) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for present obligations, of uncertain timing or amount, arising as a result of a past event where a reliable estimate
can be made and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Where
it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability unless the probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

B. Notes on Accounts As at 31.3.2006 As at 31.3.2005
Rs/lac Rs/lac

1) Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of :

i)  Counter guarantees given in respect of
Guarantees given by the Company's bankers 176.09 378.05

2) Estimated value of contracts remaining
to be executed on capital account and
not provided for (net of advances) 5,891.81 1,581.29

4) Based on technical opinion, the Company was treating plant & machinery of spinning unit as continuous process plant and accordingly
charging depreciation upto financial year 1999-2000. To keep pace with changes in technology, Company has since, revised estimated
useful life of the said plant & machinery to 13 years.

Had the depreciation been provided at rates applicable for triple shift operations, the depreciation charge for the year would have been
lower by Rs. 90.94 lac (Previous Year - Rs. 189.97 lac).

5) Miscellaneous income includes provision for diminution in value of investments written back during the year of Rs. Nil (Previous Year - Rs. 5.86
lac). Miscellaneous expenses include provision for diminution in value of investments made of Rs. 5.85 lac (Previous Year - Rs. Nil).
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6)

7)

8)

Trade creditors include outstanding dues of small scale industrial undertakings Rs.74.69 lac (Previous Year - Rs. 11.46 lac). The above
information regarding small scale industrial undertakings has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified by the
Company, on the basis of information available with them. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

During the year, the Company has capitalised borrowing costs of Rs. 112.81 lac (Previous Year - Rs. 3.00 lac), incurred on acquisition of
fixed assets. The allocation of interest on borrowings, for the purpose of capitalisation, in respect of funds borrowed and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset has been done on the basis of use of funds as per the best possible estimates.

a) The following were the unadjusted foreign exchange contracts & unhedged exposures as at the balance sheet date

Category Purpose Currency As at
31.3.2006

9)

10)

A Outstanding forward exchange contracts

Exports Hedging uUsD 1,404,877
.............................................................................................................................. Hedg|ngEur0554458
.............................................................................................................................. HedgmgGBp342732
O mpos Hedging cHE 125,000
"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" Hedgng ~  Ewo 174,000
.............................................................................................................................. Hedg|ngGBP144000
.............................................................................................................................. Hedg.nngY175oooooo
................. Term|oansHedgmgUSD333zgog

b) The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India has issued an announcement with regard to recognition of exchange differences,
arising on a forward exchange contract entered into to hedge the foreign currency risk of a firm commitment or a highly probable
forecast transaction, in the statement of profit and loss in the reporting period in which the exchange rate changes. The exchange
difference on such year end outstanding foreign exchange contracts was hitherto not being accounted for.

Accordingly the Company has recognised, during the current year, an exchange gain of Rs. 38.42 lac on the outstanding forward
exchange contracts as at end of the year. Had such exchange gain not been recognised, profit for the year would have been lower to
that extent.

During the year Company raised a sum of Rs. 6.13 crore through private placement of equity shares on preferential basis to the promoters
and utilised the same for general corporate purpose and augmenting the long term resources.

During May, 2005, the Board of Directors resolved disposal of the Company's retail clothing division, which is included in the ‘Textile Made-
up' business segment. The disposal is consistent with the Company's long-term strategy to focus in the area of manufacture of textile
products with primary emphasis being on exports, and to divest unrelated activities.

The process of disposing the division has been completed during the year. As at the end of current year, the carrying amount of assets
of the retail clothing division was Rs. 27.60 lac (previous year Rs. 328.55 lac) and its liabilities were Rs. 18.58 lac (previous year
Rs. 83.39 lac).
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The following statement shows the revenue and expenses of continuing operations and discontinuing operation:
Rs /lac
Continuing Operations Discontinuing Operation Total
2005-06 2004-05 2005-06 2004-05 2005-06 2004-05
Net sales from operations 24364.06 24122.57 158.82 741.55 24522.88  24864.12
Otherincome 545.52 463.13 25.14 30.65 570.66 493.78
Total income 24909.58 24585.70 183.96 772.20 25093.54 25357.90
Operating expenses 23768.21 23461.67 341.05 868.60 24109.26  24330.27
Pre-tax profit/ (loss) from operations 1141.37 1124.03 (157.09) (96.40) 984.28 1027.63
Financial expenses 1208.32 1019.16 0.70 245 1209.02 1021.61
Profit/ (loss) before tax (66.95) 104.87 (157.79) (98.85) (224.74) 6.02
Provision for taxation (222.56) (64.61) (51.62) (38.33) (274.18) (102.94)
Profit/ (loss) after tax 155.61 169.48 (106.17) (60.52) 49.44 108.96

Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes arise because of difference in treatment between financial accounting and tax accounting, known as "Timing differences".
The tax effect of these timing differences is recorded as "Deferred Tax assets" (generally items that can be used as a tax deduction or
credit in future periods) and "deferred tax liabilities" (generally items for which the Company has received a tax deduction , but have not

yet been recorded in the statement of income).
The principal components of the net Deferred Tax balance are as follows :

Rs/lac
As at As at
31.3.2006 31.3.2005

Deferred Tax liabilities
........ Deprec|a’[|0n236054248967
|ntang|b|es1775 ..................................................... 2448
........ Defe"edTaxassets
"""" Employee benefts . es 6059
"""" Provisions for expenses e 5658
........ Unabsorbeddeprec|at|onandcarryforward|oss11002492382
........ Other523842187
........ NetDeferredTaxnab.my112720145129

Based on schedule of reversal of timing differences of Deferred Tax liabilities, historical pre-tax earnings and projections for future taxable
income over the periods in which the Deferred Tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that the Deferred

Tax assets would be realised.

37



u
LI
2005-2006 2004-2005
Rs/lac Rs/lac
12) Auditors' remuneration
"""" (@) AudtFee &0 &m0
........ (b)TaxAud|t100100
........ (C)Certmcanon141132
........ (d)RembursememofExpenses105140
13) (a) Computation of net profitin accordance with Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 1956 and commission payable to Managerial Personnel.
Prombeforetaxanon_eoz
................ Addsmmgfeetomrectors_440
................................ CommlssmananagmgDlrector_018
"""""""""""""""""" Provisionfor doubtful debts - g6
"""""""""""""""""" Provisonforwealthtax - s
Net Profit for Section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956 - 18.83
Commission @ 1% of Net Profit - 0.18
(b) Managerial Remuneration
................ Sa|ary600_
~ ProvidentFund Contibuton ~~~~~~ om= -
................ ConmbunontoSuperannuanon090_
................ Comm,ss,ontoManag,ngD,rector_018
7.62 0.18
(c) Payments to Directors
"""""""" stingfee .m0 a0
12.00 4.40

14) Lease Commitments

The Company leases space for office and other facilities under various operating leases for periods ranging between three to five years
along with options that permit renewals for additional periods. The total amount recognised in the profit & loss account on account of rental
expense for operating leases for the year is Rs. 119.09 lac (Previous year - Rs. 132.84 lac).

Future minimum commitments in respect of the operating leases that have remaining non-cancelable terms are set out below.

Rs/lac

As at As at

31.3.2006 31.3.2005

Within one year - 0.97
"""" Beyondoneyeartofiveyears o
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15) Franchise Commitments

The Company had established retail outlets, through franchisee's, in various cities for its retail clothing division. The franchise agreements
entitled the franchisee to a percentage commission on sales with a minimum assured guarantee in some cases, based on location and size
of outlet. Pursuant to disposal of the retail clothing division, there were no franchise agreements outstanding as at the year end.

Summary of expense for such franchise agreements for the respective years is as follows.

Rs/lac

2005-06 2004-05

Minimum payments 6.25 21.05
"""" Otherpayments o ae

16) Earnings Per Share

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year available to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
by the weighted average number of equity shares in issue, adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares that were outstanding
during the year. Dilutive potential equity shares are weighted for the period they were outstanding and are deemed converted as of
beginning of the year, unless they have been issued at a later date.

The following table sets forth the computation for basic and diluted earnings per share:

Rs/lac

"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 20052006 20042005
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

........ Numerator
........ Netmcome/(|oss)fortheyear494449441089510896
"""" Add: Interest (netoftax) - iy
"""" Netearnings/(loss) for per share calculaton 4944 4944 1089 18630
........ Denommator
........ We.gmedaveragenumberofequ.tyshares21123501211236012053283720532837
........ D||ut|vepotent|a|equ|tyshares___19507333
"""" Total average equivalentshares 21123601 21123601 20532837 40040170
........ NetEammgS/(Loss)perShare(RS)023023053047
........ Nom|na|va|ueper5hare(R5)101010]_0

Potential equity options may arise only in the event of default in payment due on certain loan funds. For the current year, diluted earnings
per share is the same as the basic calculation, as the inclusion of any equity options would be anti dilutive, but these options could be
dilutive in future.

17) Related Party Transactions
Following information regarding related parties has been determined on the basis of criteria specified in AS-18 "Related Party Disclosures".
a) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place.
i)  Group A comprises of enterprise having key management in common with the Company.
— Rajasthan Spinning & Weaving Mills Ltd. (RSWM)

i)  Group B comprises of enterprises over which the key management personnel of the Company are able to exercise significant
influence
—  Mayur Knits (P) Ltd.
— Raghav Knits (P) Ltd.
— Jyoti Knits (P) Ltd.
—  Essay Marketing Company Ltd.
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9)

m)
n)
0)
p)

18)

i)  Group C comprises of key management personnel and their relatives

—  Mr. Shekhar Agarwal

—  Mrs. Shashi Agarwal

—  Mr. Shantanu Agarwal

—  Ms. Shuchi Agarwal

2005-2006 2004-2005

b) Salesto related parties (as a proportion to total turnover)

Group A 2.02% 1.77%
c) Purchase of materials from related parties (as a proportion to materials consumed)

Group A 2.38% 2.79%
d) Outstanding 'Due from' (as a proportion of total advances)

Group A - 4.60%
e) Outstanding 'Due to' (as a proportion of trade creditors)

Group A 3.96% -

Group B 1.06% 0.17%
f)  Unsecured loans 'Due to' (as a proportion of total term borrowings)

Group B - 1.36%

The Company paid Rs. 40.61 lac (Previous year - Rs. 34.77 lac) as rent for space occupied by them in the corporate head quarters owned
by RSWM.

In view of common occupation of the corporate head quarters by the Company alongwith RSWM and others, certain expenses consisting
primarily of proportionate common expenses of Rs. 61.01 lac (Previous year - Rs. 61.19 lac) were allocated by RSWM towards Company's
share. Likewise, expenses of Rs. Nil (Previous year - Rs. 1.04 lac) were allocated by the Company to RSWM.

The Company has received commission on export sales from RSWM of Rs. 22.15 lac (Previous year - Rs. 28.03 lac) as consideration for
marketing of the latter's products in certain overseas markets.

There were minor recoveries of Rs. 4.35 lac (Previous year - Rs. 5.42 lac) towards use of the Company's testing & other facilities by
RSWM.

The Company has taken during the year unsecured intercorporate loans of Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. 138.60 lac) from group 'B'
enterprises of which the sum repaid during the year was Rs. 138.60 lac (Previous year Rs. Nil). A sum of Rs. 5.21 lac (Previous year -
Rs.1.20 lac) has been paid towards interest on the same.

During the year Company raised a sum of Rs. 612.58 lac through private placement of equity shares on preferential basis to the promoters
comprising of group 'B' & 'C' parties.

Company has paid job charges to RSWM of Rs. 59.61 lac (Previous year - Rs. 26.42 lac).

Company has paid rent for lease of office premises to group 'C' parties of Rs. 6.00 lac (Previous year - Rs. Nil).

Company has purchased fixed assets of Rs. 5.87 lac (Previous year Rs. Nil) from a Group B enterprise.

Payment of remuneration to directors is as per note no.13 of this schedule.

Segment Information

The Company is currently organised into three business operating segments: Yarn, Fabric and Textile Made-ups. The Company's business
segments offer different products and require different technology and marketing strategies.

Yarn, covers bought out yarn as well as production of cotton yarn over a wide range of counts, which besides being primarily exported, is
also used for further value addition in fabric and garments. Fabric includes both bought out fabric as well as the value added activities
relating to knitting, dyeing and processing. Textile Made-ups, comprise of made-ups (both knitted as well as woven) made for renowned
international brands.

The accounting principles used in preparation of the financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in
individual segments and are as set out in the note on significant accounting policies.
Transfer prices for inter segment revenues are generally set on an arm's length basis and are eliminated in consolidation.

Revenue and direct expenses in relation to segments are categorised based on items that are individually identifiable or allocable on a
reasonable basis to that segment. Certain corporate level revenue and expenses, besides financial costs and taxes are not allocated to
operating segments and are included in "reconciliation.”

Assets and liabilities represent assets (both tangible and intangible) employed in operations and liabilities owed to third parties that are
individually identifiable or allocable on a reasonable basis to that segment. Assets and liabilities excluded from allocation to operating
segments such as investments, corporate debt and taxes etc. are included in "reconciliation.”
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Segment assets employed in the Company's various business segments are all located in India. Capital expenditure includes expenditure
incurred during the period on acquisition of segment fixed assets.

Geographical revenues are segregated based on location of the customer who is invoiced. North America comprises the United States of
America, Canada and Mexico; Europe includes continental Europe (both the east and west), Ireland and the United Kingdom; Africa
includes Mauritius; Asian continent has been segregated into the Middle East & Gulf countries while the rest of Asia, other than India has
been covered under Far East & South East Asia; Rest of the World comprises all other places except those mentioned above and India.

a) Segmentdata Rs/lac
Yarn Fabric Textile Reconciliation Consolidated
Made-ups Total

Sales
External 11,419 3,257 9,847 - 24,523
(13,486) (3,307) (8,071) (=) (24,864)
Inter segment 2,322 4,398 - (-)6,720 -
(3,630) (3,488) -) (-7,118) )
Total revenue 13,741 7,655 9,847 (-)6,720 24,523
(17,116) (6,795) (8,071) (-7,118) (24,864)
Segment result 1,531 115 (-) 706 - 940
(1,293) (193) (-474) ) (1,012)
Otherincome 1 1
(1) (1)
Unallocated expense (-)39 (-)39
(-35) (-35)
Financial costs (-) 1,127 (-) 1,127
(-972) (-972)
Taxes 274 274
(103) (103)
Net profit 1,531 115 (-) 706 (-) 891 49
(1,293) (193) (-474) (-903) (109)
Assets 18,502 6,693 6,773 534 32,502
(14,376) (4,831) (6,609) (505) (26,321)
Liabilities 609 360 866 80 1,915
(475) (334) (873) (80) (1,762)
Capital employed 17,893 6,333 5,907 454 30,587
(13,901) (4,497) (5,736) (425) (24,559)
Capital expenditure 2,485 2,904 1,47 - 5,536
(171) (66) (373) =) (610)

Depreciation & Amortisation 865 450 331 - 1,646
(1,114) (414) (297) =) (1,825)
|mpa|rment|oss_ ...................................... e e e
=) -) =) -) =)

"""" Othernon cash expense 1 9 8 g
(23) € (98) =) (129)
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b) Revenues from customers by geographic region
Rs/lac
Geographic Segments Yarn Fabric Textile Total
Made-ups
North America - - 2,889 2,889
(184) ) (1,465) (1,649)
Europe 614 99 4,236 4,949
(909) (386) (3,862) (5,157)
Gulf & Middle East 462 - 1,216 1,678
(704) =) (1,068) (1,772)
Far East & South East Asia 3,221 1,814 450 5,485
(3,900) (1,337) (88) (5,325)
Africa 2,839 - - 2,839
(3,908) (417) -) (4,325)
Rest of the World 31 - - 31
(147) =) () (147)
India 4,252 1,344 1,056 6,652
(3,734) (1,167) (1,588) (6,489)
Total 11,419 3,257 9,847 24,523
(13,486) (3,307) (8,071) (24,864)
19) Additional information pursuant to Schedule VIto the Companies Act, 1956:

a) Capacities
Unit Licensed Installed *
Spindles Nos. 89088 54528
(89088) (54528)
Knitted Fabric MT/Annum 7533 5497
(7533) (5258)
Processed Fabric MT/Annum 6319 4431
(6319) (4040)
Dyed Yarn MT/Annum 1000 1000
(1000) =)
Readymade Garments Lac Pcs. /Annum 97 79
97) (79)
Knitted Sweater Lac Pcs. /Annum 1 1
(1) (1)
Knitted/Woven Made-ups Lac Pcs./Annum 50 -
(50) =)

*  As certified by the Management. Since the Company's installation can technically be considered as a multi-purpose plant, its capacity is
necessarily variable in line with process improvements and the product mix adopted from time to time. The figures given in relation to
installed capacity, are therefore, approximate and refer to an assumed product mix.
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b. Production,Turnover & Stocks
Rs/lac
Opening Production %/ Captive Turnover Closing
Stocks Purchases Consumption Stock
Unit Qty.  Value Qty. Value Qty. Qty. Value Qty. Value
Yarn MT  462.038  540.47 13,143.727 * - 3,655.242 9,263.748 10,145.90  686.775 742.69
(145.565) (178.02)  (13,194.865) (-)  (2,678.698)  (10,199.694) (11,991.33) (462.038) (540.47)
Dyed Yarn MT - - 164.151 - 87.493 45.094 87.74 31.564  46.56
©) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
Knitted Fabric MT  166.423  235.82 3,574.312 # - 3,393.408 82.757 7151  264.570 385.86
(96.802) (124.26) (2,773.219) (-)  (2,220.338) (483.260) (664.95) (166.423) (235.82)
Processed Fabric MT  163.075  395.23 3,240.781 - 2,139.060 961.814  3,145.32  302.982 726.37
(130.528) (267.01) (2,284.712) (=) (1,542.950) (709.215)  (2,492.98) (163.075) (395.23)
Woven Fabric Mtrs in lac 0.010 0.44 - - - 0.01 0.14 - -
(0.490)  (57.05) (0.220) $ (-) (0.690) (0.01) (0.13) (0.010)  (0.44)
Garments / Made-ups Lac Pcs 5.870  951.07 67.772 @ - - 64.251  9,439.04 9.391 1,243.81
(5.151) (598.58) (46.505) (-) - (45.786)  (7,550.23) (5.870) (951.07)
Cotton / Other Waste MT 33.749 8.82 5,472.293 - - 5,462.685  1,430.65 43357  11.70
(29.040)  (11.70) (5,071.879) (-) - (5,067.170)  (1,715.86)  (33.749) (8.82)
nit 2005-2006 2004-2005
Notes :
* Includes outside production / purchases MT 1,356.901 1,348.254
# Includes outside production / purchases MT 724.924 548.497
A Includes outside processing / purchases MT 289.407 197.045
$ Includes purchases Mtrsin lac - 0.220
@ Includes purchases Lac Pcs 0.150 0.292
% Production excludes quantities produced for third parties under contract with the Company.
2005-2006 2004-2005
Value Value
Unit Qty. Rs/lac Qty. Rs/lac
c) Raw Material Consumed
Cotton MT 16,371.131 7,817.62 15,637.082 9,024.10
Yarn purchased MT 1,318.530 2,012.87 1,294.856 1,965.03
Fabrics purchased MT 215.984 402.37 326.892 546.48
Fabrics purchased Mtrsin lac - - 0.216 22.09
10,232.86 11,557.70
d) Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis in respect of :
Raw Materials 754.81 1,034.66
Stores & Spares (including Dyes,Chemicals & Embellishments) 2,304.24 585.50
Capital Goods 1,984.78 291.92
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2005-2006 2004-2005
Value Value
Rs/lac Rs/lac
e) Expenditurein Foreign Currency
Travelling 31.61 43.76
Commission and others 281.40 240.50
Interest 161.33 103.33
f) Earningsin Foreign Currency
FOB value of Exports 17,771.42 17,697.76
Others (Freight, Insurance, Claims etc.) 311.85 792.65
2005-2006 2004-2005
Value Value
Rs/lac % Rs/lac %
g) Details ofimported and indigenous
Raw Material & Stores consumed
Raw Material
— Imported 754.81 7.38 1,084.27 9.38
— Indigenous 9,478.05 92.62 10,473.42 90.62
Stores & Spares (including Dyes,
Chemicals & Embellishments)
— Imported 47.33 1.86 279.45 13.62
— Indigenous 2,493.63 98.14 1,772.95 86.38
20) a) Figures in brackets, wherever given, are in respect of previous year.
b) Previous year's figures have been regrouped and recast wherever considered necessary.
The Schedules referred to in Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account form an integral part of the accounts.
Signed for identification Schedule 1 to 16
As per our report of even date
For Doogar & Associates For Ashim & Associates Ravi Jhunjhunwala
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman
Mukesh Goyal Ashim Agarwal Shekhar Agarwal
Partner Partner Managing Director
Membership N0.81810 Membership No. 84968
P.S.Puri
Chief Financial Officer
Noida (U.P) Rajat Prothi
25th April, 2006 Company Secretary
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SCHEDULE - VI
PART - IV
BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT & COMPANY'’'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE
L Registration Details
Registration No. [o]o]o]o][8]2]5]5] State Code 1]0]
Balance Sheet Date [3]1] [o]3] [2]o]o]6]
Il. Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rupees Thousands)
Public Issue | | | | |N|I|L| Right Issue | | | | |N|I|L|
Bonus Issue [ | [ | IN[I]L]  Private Placement [ | [1]2]2]5]2]

lil.  Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rupees Thousands)

Total Liabilities
Sources of Funds
Paid-up Capital
Reserves & Surplus
Secured Loans
Unsecured Loans

Deferred Tax Liability

[3]o]6][3]9]7][3]  Total Assets [3]o]6][3]9]7]3]

Application of Funds

| [2]1]7[5]8]0]  NetFixed Assets [1]8]5]1]1]3]8]

| [efaf9[7][1]0]
[2]o]3]3][9]6]3]
| | [s]ofofofo]
[ J1]1[2]7]2]0]

Investments Ll [ Ja]a]of1]

[1]2]of6[3][7]0]

Net Curret Assets

[5]2]7]4]
[N 1] ]

Miscellaneous Expenditure | | |

Accumulated Losses | | | |

IV. Performance of Company (Amount in Rupees Thousands)

Net Turnover

[2]4]5]2]2]8[8]  Total Expenditure [2]a|7]4a]7]6]2]

+/— Profit/Loss before tax [-] [2]2]4]7]4]  +-ProfitiLoss after tax [+] | [4]9]4]4]
Earning per share (in Rs.) [ | | Jo].]2]3] Dividend Rate (%) [T 1 ] INJI]L]
V.  Generic Names of Three Principal Products / Services of the Company (As per monetary terms)
Item Code No. (ITC Code) Product Description
L[ [s[2].]ofo] c[o[T[T[o|N[ [c|o[m]elE[D] [H]O]S[I]E[R[Y] [Y]A[R[N] |
Item Code No. (ITC Code) Product Description
| [ [6fof [ofo] lclolT[T[o|nN[ [Kk[N[r]T[T[E[D] [FlA[BIR[I[c] [ | | [ ||
Item Code No. (ITC Code) Product Description
L[ lefa].]ofo] lclolT[T[o|N[ [K[N[I]T[T[E[D[] [GIA[RIM[E[N|T] | | [ | |
Ravi Jhunjhunwala
Chairman
Shekhar Agarwal
Managing Director
P.S.Puri
Chief Financial Officer
Noida (U.P) Rajat Prothi
25th April, 2006 Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2006 Rs /lac
Year Ended Year Ended
31.3.2006 31.3.2005
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/ (Loss ) before tax (224.74) 6.02
....... " djustmentsfor
.............. - epreC|at|on&Amort|sat|on164624182544
""""""" Dividend received "8 (056
""""""" InterestCost 108080  860.20
.............. . nreallsedExchangeleference6327606
""""""" Diminution in value of investments . sg (586
 (Profity/ Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Net) | @29 (9.05)
.............. - |scellaneousExpendlturewrlttenoff300112900

Operating profit before working capital changes 2,538.28 2,811.25
"""" Adjustmentsfor
....... TradeRecewabIes66683(74245)
....... L
""""""" Rawmaterial & Packing material (139640 165568
~stockinprocess 8940 (259.58)
.............. - |n|shedGoods&Waste(102515)(89523)
Storesspares&others ............................................................................................. (22608)11223 ...........................
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 255823 61310
....... Loans&Advances(41000)(97046)
....... TradePayabIes13917(70089)
"""" Provisions 1 (8
.................................................................................................................................................................................... 13904(72244)
....... DeferredRevenueExpendlture(1000)(9844)

Cash from operating activities 365.92 890.56
"""" TaxesPad T T esasy L

Net cash from operating activities 330.48 890.56
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of fixed assets (5,443.34) (1,316.89)
....... Sale/AdjuStmentOfflxedassets36414326
....... o
"""" Dividend received . ""ogs 056

Net Cash used in investing activities (5,391.38) (1,269.72)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

....... Proceedsfrom|ncrease|nsharecap|tal61258—
"""" Receipts fromTerm & Other Borrowings 716819 404070
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Rs/lac
Year Ended Year Ended
31.3.2006 31.3.2005
Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term Bank Borrowings 2,545.34 (1,006.64)
''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' 1032611  3,034.06
Repayment of Term & Other Borrowings (4,108.69) (1,902.78)
"""" InterestCost . @ies2e (81309
(527295) ................................... ( 277587)
Net Cash from financing activities 5,053.16 258.19
Net increase in Cash and Cash equivalents (7.74) (120.97)
Opening Cash and Cash equivalents 244.81 365.78
....... CIosmgCashandCashequwalents2370724481
Notes
1. Cashand cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and demand deposits with bank.
2. Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise of the following amounts:
"""" Cash, Cheques & Stampsinhand 20148 7053
"""" Balanceswithbank " 9587 23239
....... PostOfﬂceSavmgAccount001001
As per the Balance Sheet 297.06 302.93
....... LessDepos|tsunderI|en588311
.................... Marg|nMoneyAccount627027
.................... Unpa|dD|V|dendAccount21022788
"""""""""" Employees Security — Savings Account &0 &5
" pepositAccount 2172 2129
...................................................................................................................................................................................... 59995812
Closing cash & cash equivalents as restated 237.07 244.81
3. Cash flows of continuing operations and discontinuing operation are:
Continuing Operations Discontinuing Operation Total
2005-06 2004-05 2005-06 2004-05 2005-06 2004-05
Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities 261.67 969.23 68.81 (78.67) 330.48 890.56
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities ~ (5,393.38) (1,269.81) 2.00 0.09  (5,391.38) (1,269.72)
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities 5,053.74 260.14 (0.58) (1.95) 5,053.16 258.19

4. Previous year's figures have been rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date

For Doogar & Associates For Ashim & Associates Ravi Jhunjhunwala

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman

Mukesh Goyal Ashim Agarwal Shekhar Agarwal

Partner Partner Managing Director
Membership No.81810 Membership No. 84968

P.S. Puri

Chief Financial Officer

Noida (U.P.) Rajat Prothi

25th April, 2006 Company Secretary
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FINANCIAL INDICATORS
(Rs/lac)
S.NO. | DESCRIPTION 2001-2002 | 2002-2003 | 2003-2004 | 2004-2005 | 2005-2006
1. Net Turnover 25,370.97 26,574.48 23,824.32 24,864.12 24,522.87
s 2PBIDT364659 ........... 354458 ........... ( 25903) ........... 285307 ........... 253052
..... 3 |nterest
| -tongTerm [ 69709 | 76682 | 68185 | 50243 | 62691
| —shortterm [ g27.12 | 46640 | 52381 | 42018 | s8211
B I 152511 | 123322 | 1020566 | 102161 | 120002
s 4Depre0,at,0n ................................................................................ 1 35536 ........... 203393 214236 ........... 182544 ........... 154624
e 5pB-|- ................................................................................................. 26562 ............... 2 7243 (360755) ................... 602 ........... (22474)
6 | Provisionforincome Tax | 14356 |  (3842) | (1288.27) | (10294) | (274.18)
e 12206 | 31085 | (231928) | 10896 | 20.04
& | EPS(WeightedAvg) | (30 | 148 | (3o | 053 | 023
s gEqu,tyCap,ta|2o5328 ........... 205328 205328 ........... 205328 ........... 217530
10 Preferencecap|ta| ........................................................................ 50000_ e B R -
11 | RewmonNetwoth©o)# | | |
(PAT / Net Worth) (0.63) 3.00 (28.73) 1.37 0.57
12 |merestc°ver# ..................................................................................................................................................................................................
(PBIDT-Tax) / Interest 2.15 3.17 0.83 3.25 2.63
13 | pebt-Equty# | 06 | 074 | 100 | 128 | 154
14 Remmonsales ................................................................................. 048 ................... 117 ............... (973) ................... 0 44 020
1 ...... Tota|Cap|ta|Emp|oyed2471077 ......... 2652372 ........ 2388826 ......... 2456094 ......... 3053699
e 2NetWorth1021125 ......... 1012957 807298 ........... 793813 ........... 862016
"3 | TotalDent | 1138683 | 1332472 | 1403412 | 1517152 | 20839.63
4 |Tempet | 789611 | 751133 | 804561 | 10189.65 | 1331242
5 | Gross Fixed Assets | 2627642 | 2768549 | 2829130 | 2951697 | 34,65657

Note: # Preference Share Capital has been considered as part of debt and corresponding dividend thereon as part of financial cost.
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QUANTITATIVE DATA
(Rs/lac)
PROCESSED
YEAR YARN FABRIC FABRIC GARMENT
MT MT MT LACPCS
PRODUCTION
2001-2002 11587.76 3020.56 2349.42 42.47
2002-2003 12166.63 2981.52 2463.72 65.77
2003-2004 9952.95 1920.62 1678.65 42.10
2004-2005 11846.61 2224.72 2087.67 46.21
2005-2006 11786.83 2849.39 2951.37 67.62
SALES
2001-2002 10065.68 931.76 536.13 56.38
2002-2003 11051.53 680.52 554.31 66.67
2003-2004 9738.05 622.96 818.84 45.42
2004-2005 10199.69 483.26 709.21 45.79
2005-2006 9263.75 82.76 961.81 64.25
FINANCIAL STATISTICS
CAPITAL ACCOUNT (Rs / lac)
YEAR CAPITAL RESERVES NETWORTH
2001-2002 2553.28 8270.05 10211.25
2002-2003 2053.28 8573.56 10129.57
2003-2004 2053.28 6254.29 8072.98
2004-2005 2053.28 5957.60 7938.13
2005-2006 2175.80 6497.10 8620.16
REVENUE ACCOUNT
(Rs/lac)
YEAR NET SALES OPERATING COST PBIDT | INTEREST | DEPRECIATION PBT TAX PAT
RAW MATERIAL | PACKING COST | VALUE ADDED
2001-2002 25,370.97 | 12,813.95 530.93 12,026.09 3,646.59 | 1,525.11 1,855.86 265.62 143.56 122.06
2002-2003 26,574.48 | 13,918.84 560.70 12,094.94 3,544.58 | 1,233.22 2,038.93 272.43 (38.42)| 310.85
2003-2004 23,824.32 | 12,853.02 421.43 10,549.87 (259.03) | 1,205.66 2,142.86 (3,607.55) | (1,288.27) |(2,319.28)
2004-2005 24,864.12 | 13,419.19 350.96 11,093.96 2,853.07 | 1,021.61 1,825.44 6.02| (102.94)| 108.96
2005-2006 24,522.88 | 12,452.24 451.59 11,619.05 2,630.52 | 1,209.02 1,646.24 (224.74) | (274.18) 49.44
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CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE
COMPANY

We, Shekhar Agarwal, Managing Director and P.S. Puri, Chief Financial Officer, of Maral Overseas Limited, hereby
certify to the Board that:

(@) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

(i) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by Maral Overseas Limited during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

(c) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting in Maral Overseas
Limited and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting. We have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to
rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:
(i) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements; and

(i) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system.

(e) We affirm that we have not denied any personnel access to the Audit Committee of the Company (in respect of
matters involving alleged misconduct).

() We further declare that all Board members and designated senior management have affirmed compliance with the
Code of Conduct for the current year.

Place : Noida Shekhar Agarwal P. S. Puri
Dated : 25th April, 2006 Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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